FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
5/10/2021 11:01 AM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

No. 99752-7

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

In Re Sanctions Judgment against attorney Robert Critchlow,

Petitioner vs.

Dawn Vidoni, Dianna Evans and Levi Liljenquist,

Respondents.

Robert Critchlow Petition for Review

Robert W. Critchlow Attorney Pro Se WSBA# 17540 208 E. Rockwell Ave Spokane, WA. 99207 (509) 483-4106***office (509) 216-6380***cell Email=critchie747@comcast.net

I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

Petitioner Robert W. Critchlow asks this court to review the Div. III Opinion dated Feb. 25, 2021 and their order dated April 29, 2021.

II. PART B

Div. III opinion and order are attached to the appendix.

III. INTRODUCTION

This case involves a "pro tem" court commissioner who acted without jurisdiction and signed orders on this guardianship case in violation of the prohibition against pro tem commissioners signing such orders as set forth in LSPR 98.22 (a)[see appendix]. This pro tem commissioner also imposed CR 11 sanctions on attorney Robert Critchlow for asking the pro tem commissioner to follow the Washington supreme court opinion in Graham v. Graham, infra which mandates that incompetents be provided advance notice and opportunity to be heard before a guardian ad litem can be appointed. This case also involves a "pro tem" commissioner who misrepresented that he was a regular court commissioner rather than a pro tem court commissioner. Finally, this case involves a Div. III opinion which violated the Washington state supreme court rule set forth in Sunderland Servs. v. Pasco, 127 Wn.2d 782 (en banc, 1995) that appellate courts cannot change the factual record of a case they are reviewing and then issue an opinion based on this incorrect record.

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On Feb. 22, 2019 attorney Robert Critchlow represented Jerome
Green in a VAPO hearing (supreme court case #995672 filed on March
10, 2021) AAG Dawn Vidoni alleged in that case that DSHS was going to
file a guardianship petition for Mary J. Green. In the VAPO order AAG
Vidoni was ordered to file the guardianship petition on Feb. 25, 2019. [CP
148-204] Instead, Vidoni obtained an ex parte order without giving
Jerome Green nor his attorney Mr. Critchlow, nor any of Mary Green's
children an opportunity to appear at and contest the appointment of a
guardian ad litem.[CP 148-204] Since this was "contested" Vidoni failed to
follow written Spokane County GAL policies [appendix] requiring her to place a
"contested appointment" on the Guardianship Calendar for a hearing. As such,
attorney Critchlow filed a motion to strike this wrongfully obtained ex parte GAL
appointment order. Critchlow also filed a motion for CR 11 sanctions against the
attorneys (Dawn Vidoni and Dianna Evans) who signed and approved this
wrongfully obtained GAL appointment order. [CP 38-39]

On March 15, 2019 Jerome also filed his own pro se motions 1) to intervene as a party and/or in the alternative to have the VAPO case joined with the guardianship case and 2) to appoint counsel for his mother [CP 27-35] These motions (along with attorney Critchlow's motion to revise Commissioner High-Edward ruling of Feb. 22, 2019 in the VAPO case) were all noted and called in

ready for the "civil motions judge room 303" to be heard on March 29, 2019. On that date Mr. Critchlow argued his motion for revision in front of Judge Moreno and it was granted. Judge Moreno remanded the VAPO case finding that there was "an unresolved issue regarding Mary Green's ability to consent as well as the burden of proof." Mr. Critchlow and Mr. Green were then told to go down to courtroom 303 where Mr. Green's pro se motions were to be heard in front of judicial officer Steve Grovdhal. At that hearing GAL Evans presented an order appointing her friend Levi Liljenquist as the attorney to represent Mary Green [CP 25]. Further Evans had Liljenquist appointed at his private pay rate of \$175/hr even though this was a "county pay" case at the rate of \$60/hr. [CP 70-71]

Steve Grovdahl had retired as a regular court commissioner on May 15, 2016 [CP 129-147 Critchlow declaration and public records]. Grovdahl was then hired back by Spokane County to perform temporary duties after the death of Judge James Triplett, first as a pro tem judge, then as a pro tem court commissioner. [CP 129-147] Although Mr. Critchlow and Mr. Green did not know it at the time Steve Grovdahl's pro tem judge status was revoked on March 15, 2019 by Spokane Co. Presiding Judge Harold Clarke. [CP 129-147, Critchlow declaration and public records] Grovdahl was then appointed on that same day (March 15, 2019) to act as a "pro tem" court commissioner. Yet on March 29, 2019 Grovdahl still had a very large colored sign posted outside his courtroom announcing that he was the "Honorable Steven Grovdahl, Pro Tem Judge." [CP 129-147] Grovdahl came out to the bench without even announcing his name nor

his judicial status and went straight into hearing the case. [RP 4 transcript of March 29, 2109 hearing] At that time Mr. Critchlow [March 29, 2019 transcript RP 13, line 12] believed that Grovdahl was acting as a pro tem judge and Critchlow referred to him as "judge" and Grovdahl made no correction on the record to deny this. Mr. Critchlow had to find out the true Grovdahl judicial status via a General Rule 31 request for administrative records sent to Court Administrator Ashley Callan on April 9, 2019. On April 19, 2019 [CP 129-147] Mr. Critchlow filed and served his declaration of Robert Critchlow in Support of Notice Striking Motion to Revise Commissioner Ruling which contained copies of these administrative records and the dates of "appointment" and "termination" and also pictures showing 1) "Grovdahl Pro Tem Judge" sign and 2) "Grovdahl Court Commissioner" sign. On Nov. 7, 2019, Jerome Green later discovered that Steve Grovdahl is now finally representing his correct judicial status as a "pro tem" court commissioner. [CP 326-28]

At the March 29, 2019 hearing Grovdhal denied Mr. Green's pro se motions to intervene as party and/or consolidate the two cases. Mr. Critchlow and Mr. Green only realized <u>after</u> the hearing was over that Grovdahl was acting and signing these orders as a regular "ct commissioner" <u>rather</u> than a "pro tem judge" <u>nor</u> even as a "pro tem court commissioner" [CP 73-74]

Mr. Critchlow had filed motions on behalf of Jerome Green to strike the GAL appointment order as unconstitutional and for CR 11 sanctions to be assessed against the attorneys (Evans and Vidoni) who had each signed off on and presented this ex parte order. This motion to strike was also held in front of Grovdahl the following Friday, April 5, 2019 and Grovdahl did the same thing. He still had his big colored sign that he was an honorable "pro tem judge" [CP129-147] He once again came out to the bench and went straight into hearing the case without announcing his true judicial status. [RP 18, April 5, 2019 hearing] Indeed Grovdahl was unprepared for this sanctions hearing and even admitted that "this is the time and place for, well I don't know what it's set for." [April 5, 2019 hearing, RP 18, lines 17-18] Grovdahl believed that Mr. Critchlow had brought a motion to remove GAL Evans and Mr. Critchlow had to correct him:

MR CRITCHLOW: Your honor it's not a motion to remove the guardian ad litem. It's a motion to strike the guardian ad litem order.

[April 5, 2019 hearing, RP 35, lines 1-3] Mr. Critchlow confronted Grovdahl about the irregularities of this hearing [April 5, 2019 transcript RP 18-38] specifically his actions representing that he was a "pro tem judge." Grovdahl never mentioned the administrative order signed by Judge Harold Clarke appointing Grovdahl on March 15, 2019 as a "pro tem court commissioner"

[CP 129-147, Critchlow declaration, exhibit 7] Grovdahl denied Mr. Critchlow's motion to strike the GAL order and to sanction attorneys Vidoni and Evans. Instead, Grovdahl ordered sanctions imposed against Mr. Critchlow for raising constitutional issues of due process, notice and advance opportunity to be heard. [RP 18-38, April 5, 2019 hearing transcript] For this sanctions order/judgment Dianna Evans submitted her <u>private rate</u> for attorney fees at \$185/hour and Levi Liljenquist submitted his <u>private</u> <u>pay rate</u> of \$175/hr for attorney fees even though this was a "**public pay**" case with a set (court ordered) rate of \$60/hr.

V. ARGUMENTS OF WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED

1. The Div. III finding that Grovdahl was not misrepresenting his judicial status cannot be made by a reviewing court and this is a matter of substantial public interest that should be reviewed by the supreme court per RAP 13.4(b)(4)

The Div. III opinion makes a <u>finding</u> that "Mr. Critchlow's scurrilous charge that Commissioner Grovdahl held himself out as a judge lacks any credible support."(Op. 17) Credibility determinations are for the fact finder and are not reviewed on appeal. *J.L. Storedahl & Sons v. Cowlitz County*, 125 Wn. App. 1, 11 (2004). These misrepresentation issues are well supported by the official trial court records in this case, viz.:1) Judge Price order dated Nov. 5, 2018 appointing Grovdahl a pro tem judge; 2) Judge Clark's order dated March 15, 2019 terminating Grovdahl as pro tem judge and 3) Judge Clark's order dated March 15,

2019 appointing Grovdahl as a "pro tem" court commissioner. All of this is credible and competent evidence. Finally, the entire verbatim transcripts of both the March 29, 2019 and April 5, 2019 hearings prove that Steve Grovdahl did not announce his current judicial status.

1b. Div. III violated the Washington state supreme court ruling of *Sunderland Servs. v. Pasco*, 127 Wn.2d 782 (en banc, 1995) when they changed the factual record of this case and based their opinion on that incorrect factual record. RAP 13.4(b)(1)

Div. III offers as proof that there was no misrepresentation of judicial status a copy of the Grovdahl signature on the bottom of the March 29, 2019 order (Opin.17) wherein Grovdahl is listed and signed his name as a "court commissioner." But in fact Grovdahl was not a "court commissioner" at that time but was a "pro tem court commissioner" A court of appeals cannot change the factual record to support its opinion. Sunderland Servs. v. Pasco, 127 Wn.2d 782 (en banc, 1995) The issuance of sanctions by "pro tem" commissioner Grovdahl under these circumstances is a gross miscarriage of justice in addition to lacking any jurisdiction to issue such an order per LSPR 98.22 (a) which clearly prohibits "pro tem" commissioners from signing any orders on guardianship cases.

2. Mr. Critchlow's due process rights under the 5th and 14th amendments of our federal constitution were violated when presentment was made ex parte by Dianna Evans on May 10,

2019 without notifying Mr. Critchlow. This is a significant question under our federal constitution per RAP 13.4(b)(3)

Div. III states that "nothing in the record indicates Mr. Critchlow responded or objected to the amount or calculation of the attorney fee requests." (Opin. 24) This is because Dianna Evans obtained these orders/judgments ex parte without giving Mr. Critchlow formal notice of the time and place for presentment [see appendix-docket summary for May 10, 2019] Ex parte contacts with the court by a GAL are strictly prohibited by statute and court rule. See RCW 11.88.093 and GALR 2(m). For a party that has a liberty or property interest, due process requires, at a minimum notice and an opportunity to be heard. Soundgarten v. Eikenberry, 123 Wn.2d 750, 768 (1994). Notice must be reasonably calculated to inform the pending action and of the opportunity to object. State v. Dolson, 138 Wn.2d 773, 777 (1999). Finally, Civil Rule 54 (f)(2) requires that Mr. Critchlow be given five days "notice of presentation" before a judgment is entered but none of these rules were followed by the respondents.

2a. Mr. Critchlow never argued that a hearing had to be held before a guardianship petition could be filed. Critchlow's argument was that a hearing for Mary Green had to be held before a Guardian Ad Litem could be appointed. This is a matter of substantial public interest that should be determined by the supreme court per RAP 13.4(b)(4).

2b. Div. III violated the Washington state supreme court rule set forth in *Sunderland Servs. v. Pasco*, 127 Wn.2d 782 (en banc, 1995) when they changed the factual record and then issued an opinion based on that incorrect factual record.

Div. III wrote "central to Mr. Critchlow's motions was his belief that there should have been a hearing with notice to Mary Green before the guardianship petition could be filed and the order appointing a GAL could be entered." (Op.5) This is <u>not</u> and <u>never</u> has been the argument Mr. Critchlow made in the official court records. In Mr. Critchlow's opening brief to Div. III he explained:

In her response memorandum [CP 58-62] AAG Vidoni wrote that (page 3,par 2) "Mr Green seems to confuse appointment of a guardian ad litem with appointment of a guardian." This is not true. Mr. Critchlow's memo clearly addresses the right for a hearing on the issue of appointing a "guardian ad litem" and not the issue of appointing a "guardian .Indeed, his motion was to "strike the GAL appointment order" and it is abundantly clear that these issues were the ones submitted by Critchlow to the court for consideration. GAL Evans response memorandum [CP 63-69] is equally elusive in failing to address the fact that no contested hearing was held before her appointment as GAL for Mary J. Green. The Evans response simply rambles on about the requirements of CR 11 and, like Vidoni, Evans goes on to discuss the notice requirements for appointing a "guardian", not the requirements for appointing a ""guardian ad litem" which was the specific issue that attorney Critchlow had put before the court.

[Critchlow opening brief, pg 30-31] Even so Div. III adopted these adversarial arguments set forth by respondents as though they were the facts of this case when these statements are patently false.

3. Mr. Critchlow's motion to strike was not "baseless" but was in fact based on longstanding case law. The Div. III opinion is in conflict with $Graham\ v.\ Graham$ and needs to be reviewed by this court per RAP 13.4(b)(1)

Div. III states that Mr. Critchlow was "advancing his baseless arguments" (Op. 1) while at the same time they have misstated the substance of those arguments. Mr. Critchlow's argument was that due process required a hearing before a guardian ad litem could be appointed for Mary Green. Critchlow did <u>not</u> argue that this had to be done before a guardianship case was commenced. On page 28-29 of his opening brief he quoted *Graham v. Graham*:

That a guardian ad litem should **not** be appointed by the court **unless a** full and fair opportunity is given to the alleged incompetent to defend and be heard. There is something fundamental in the matter of a litigant being able to use his personal judgment and intelligence in connection with a lawsuit affecting him, and not having a guardian's judgment and intelligence substituted relative to the litigation affecting the alleged incompetent. Furthermore, there is something **fundamental** in a party litigant being able to employ an attorney of his voluntary choice to represent him in court and in being free to accept or reject the advice of such an attorney. The **interposition of a guardian** ad litem could very well substitute his judgment and inclinations and intelligence for an alleged incompetent's. (Emphasis added in bold) [Critchlow opening brief, pgs 28-29] *Graham v. Graham*,40 Wn.2d 64 (1952). Graham, id is the seminal case addressing these due process rights. This case has <u>never been overruled</u> and the Washington Supreme court has affirmed/followed it in *Quesnell v. State*, 83 Wn.2d

224 (1973). Indeed, *Graham* has also been affirmed/followed by numerous courts of appeals cases as well. Div. III is in direct conflict with *Graham*, *id*. A decision of the Supreme court is <u>binding</u> on all lower courts, *State v. Gore*, 101 Wn.2d 481, 681 P.2d 227 (1984)["in failing to follow directly controlling authority of this court, the Court of Appeals erred"]

4.The Div. III discussion of *Marriage of Blakely* demonstrates that the law is not clear in these matters and so how can Mr. Critchlow be sanctioned under Civil Rule 11 for arguing that there should be a right for a contested hearing for appointments of guardian ad litems in guardianship cases? This is a matter of substantial public interest that should be determined by the supreme court. RAP 13.4

In their discussion of *Marriage of Blakely*, 111 Wn. App. 351 (Div. III, 2002) Div. III (Op. 10) states that case dealt with RCW 4.08. 060. Mr. Critchlow <u>also previously noted</u> that the case dealt with RCW 4.08.060. Mr. Critchlow wrote on page 2 of his trial court memo:

The statute sets out no procedure for appointment of a GAL beyond application requirements *Marriage of Blakely*, 111 Wn. App. 351 (Div. III, 2002) citing RCW 4.08.060(2). However <u>case law provides</u> that whenever the issue of a party's competence to understand legal proceedings is raised, the trial court should conduct a hearing to determine whether a party is mentally competent or requires a GAL. *Marriage of Blakely*, 111 Wn. App. 351 (Div. III, 2002) citing *Vin Vo v.Pham*, 81 Wn. App. 781 at 786.

[CP 40-51] Div. III held (Opin 10)"the Department properly sought ex parte appointments of the GAL in this guardianship proceeding under RCW 11.88.090(3)". However, like RCW 4.08.060, RCW 11.88.090(3) also does not specify any particular method for appointing the GAL. It does not say whether the appointment can be done ex parte or whether it must be done by way of a contested hearing with advance notice. How can Mr. Critchlow be sanctioned for making a good faith argument that a contested hearing with advance notice is required when RCW 11.88.090(3) is not clear in this situation and in fact is silent on the subject? Further, there is a different Washington state standard guardianship form GDN 08.0470 (07/2017) which is entitled "Order Appointing Guardian Ad Litem in an Existing Guardianship case." [see appendix]. This form clearly contemplates appointment of a GAL after a guardianship case has already been commenced, presumably with a regular hearing and advance notice to family members. This form also supports Mr. Critchlow's argument that advance notice of such a hearing is better than an ex parte proceeding particularly since court rules and statutes, supra, strictly prohibit ex parte contacts by GAL's.

CR 11 allows for "good faith arguments for the extension, modification or reversal of existing law or the establishment of new law." CR 11 (b)(1). Civil Rule 11 is not intended to chill an attorney's enthusiasm or creativity in pursuing factual or legal theories. *Kilduff v. San Juan County*, 194 Wn. 2d 859 (2019) citing *Bryant v. Joseph Tree Inc*.119 Wn.2d 210, 219 (1992).

5. The Div. III holding in this case violates the Equal Protection clauses of the 5th and 14th amendments in our federal constitution which involve significant questions of law which should be reviewed per RAP 13.(b)(3)

The Div. III holding in this case is "The department properly sought ex parte appointment of the GAL in this guardianship proceeding under RCW 11.88.090(3)" (Op. 10) But neither statute RCW 11.88.090(3) nor RCW 4.08.060(2) mentions any ex parte procedure for appointment of GAL's. As such, Div. III has created two different methods for dealing with incompetents: 1) those incompetents involved with guardianship proceedings will have a GAL appointed ex parte and without advance notice or a contested hearing and 2) all other cases involving incompetents will have the right to a contested hearing and advance notice before appointment of a GAL. This will not pass must under the "equal protection clauses" of our federal

constitution to classify incompetents in such a manner without any rational basis. See *Fire Protection Dist. v. City of Moses Lake*, 145 Wn.2d 702 (2002) citing *Corso Inc. v. Liquor Control Board*, 107 Wn.2d 754 (1987) and US Const. amend. 14.

6a.LSPR 98.22 was raised at the trial court by attorney Diana Evans and so the Div. III holding that this issue is not reviewable since not raised at the trial court is incorrect. Further it appears that the Div. III did actually review LSPR 98.22 by ruling that it was not jurisdictional. These are matters of substantial public interest per RAP 13.4(b)(4).

6b. Div. III violated the Washington state supreme court opinion of *Sunderland Servs. v. Pasco*, 127 Wn.2d 782 (en banc, 1995) when Div. III changed the factual record in this case and found that Mr. Critchlow knew that Grovdahl was a pro tem commissioner on April 5, 2019. This should be reviewed per RAP 13.4(b)(1)

The Div. III opinion holds that, since it was raised "for the first time on appeal" (Op.15) "any violation of LSPR 98.22 is not reviewable." (Op.16) At the same time, Div. III holds that "the error complained of by Mr. Critchlow is not jurisdictional "citing *Amy v. Kmart of Wash LLC*, 153 Wn. App. 846 (2009) (Op. 15) which is non sequitur. In his opening brief for the court of appeals Mr. Critchlow had written as follows:

Even GAL Dianna Evans <u>also</u> admitted and understood that a pro tem commissioner could <u>not</u> hear any guardianship matters. Indeed, Evans specifically stated in her Guardian Ad Litem Reponses to Motion for Revision dated April 12, 2019 [CP 278-275] where she attested on page 2 par 4 as follows:

Pro tem commissioners cannot hear guardianship matters but Commissioner Grovdahl is duly appointed and has no restriction in hearing this matters. See LSRP 98.22(Emphasis added in bold)

[Critchlow Opening Brief, page 16]. Although the issue was specifically raised by Ms. Evans in her trial brief, since it was briefed and argued to the trial court, it can be considered by courts on appeal. See *Assoc. Gen. Contrtrs. King County*, 124 Wn.2d 835 (1994) citing *State v. Riley*, 121

Wn.2d 22 (1993)[courts can consider issues briefed at the trial court]

6b. Div. III violated the Washington state supreme court rule of *Sunderland Servs. v. Pasco*, 127 Wn.2d 782 (en banc, 1995) when they changed the factual record in this case held that Mr. Critchlow knew that Grovdahl was a pro tem commissioner on April 5, 2019 which is demonstrably false. This should be reviewed per RAP 13.4(b)(1)

Div. III complains that Mr. Critchlow should have raised his objection at the time of the April 5, 2019 sanctions hearing and then they changed the factual record by stating "that he did raise a point of order that Grovdahl was a **pro tem commissioner** rather than a pro tem judge." (Op. 16) This is clearly not the factual record for this case. At the April 5, 2019 hearing Critchlow was unaware of Steve Grovdahl's' "pro tem" court commissioner status. The March 29, 2019 order merely described Grovdahl as a "court commissioner" and not as a "pro tem court commissioner." Mr. Critchlow did not find out this specific information until he submitted his GR 31 public records request for Grovdahl's true judicial status which he received on April 9, 2019.

7. GAL Dianna Evans misrepresented Grovdahl's judicial status when she drafted her pleadings in this case and described him as a court commissioner rather than a "pro tem" court commissioner because she knew that Spokane County Local Rule LSRP 98.22 does not allow pro tem court commissioners to sign any orders on guardianship cases. These are matters of substantial public interest to be reviewed by the supreme court per RAP 13.4(b)(4)

As previously noted, GAL Evans was aware of the LSPR 98.22(a) requirement that pro tem court commissioners could <u>not</u> sign orders on any guardianship cases. [CP 278-275] Nonetheless, Evans repeatedly described Grovdahl as a "court commissioner" in <u>all of her pleadings</u>. Indeed she continued to make these misrepresentations well after Mr. Critchlow filed and served his declaration and public records exhibits (showing true Grovdahl judicial status) on April 19, 2019. She is not entitled to any sanctions when she engages in this type of fraudulent misconduct. See In *Mitchell v. Wash. State Inst. of Pub. Policy*, 153 App. 803 (Div. II, 2009), where the court held:

A cost bill is nothing more than a document that supports a party's request for attorney fees and costs in signed pleadings and motions. It is **not a license to commit fraud or other misconduct in order to enhance the recovery** under a cost bill. Therefore we hold that a cost bill is a legal memorandum subject to sanction under CR11 even though outside the period specified for motions to retax under CR 78(e).(emphasis added in bold)

Mitchell, id citing CR 11 and CR 78e (emphasis added in bold).

8. RAP 2.5 (a)(1) allows Mr. Critchlow to raise lack of trial court jurisdiction for the first time on appeal. These are matters of substantial public interest to be reviewed per RAP 13.4(b)(4).

Div. III recognized that Mr. Critchlow made a jurisdictional objection to Grovdahl that the "local rules don't authorize court commissioners to hear civil motions."(Op.16) Div. III also noted Critchlow's written objection to jurisdiction on the April 5, 2019 court order. Thus it is clear that Mr. Critchlow was objecting to Grovdahl's jurisdiction to hear these matters. Jurisdiction can always be raised, even on appeal. See RAP 2.5(a)(1) and *In Re Estate of Reugh*, 10 Wn. App. 2d 20, 43 (2019)

9a. Div. III states that Spokane County GAL policies indicate that this was an uncontested hearing but according to the official court record both Evans and Vidoni knew that the appointment of a GAL was being contested. These are matters of substantial public interest to be reviewed by the supreme court per RAP 13.4(b)(4).

9b. Div. III violated the Washington state supreme court opinion of *Sunderland Servs. v. Pasco*, 127 Wn.2d 782 (en banc, 1995) when Div. III changed the factual record in this case and this should be reviewed per RAP 13.4(b)(1)

Div. III (Op.10, fn 7) states that since Mary Green did not have counsel at the time of the GAL appointment the Spokane County GAL policies deem such a hearing as "uncontested" and so any advance notice requirements would not apply to her case. Div. III has <u>changed the factual record</u> in this case which was as stated in the Critchlow opening brief:

GAL Dianna Evans [CP 287-315, Judge Clary status conference transcript of Dec. 11, 2019, RP 23, lines 13-16] was also aware that Jerome Green (and his attorney Robert Critchlow) were <u>contesting</u> this

guardianship but still both Evans and Vidoni failed to the follow written Spokane County GAL policies [Appendix 1, pg 2-3] [Critchlow opening brief pg 25] Div. III's <u>finding</u> that Mary Green's GAL appointment hearing was "uncontested" is simply not supported by the actual record in this case. Div. III has <u>changed</u> the factual record in violation of *Sunderland Servs. v. Pasco,id.*

12. Critchlow's due process rights under the 5th and 14th amendments were violated when respondents Evans and Liljenquist failed to file any response briefs with the court of appeals. These issues involve significant questions of law under the constitution and should be reviewed per RAP 13.4(b)(3)

By letter dated Feb. 18, 2020 the court of appeals advised all respondents (Vidoni, Evans and Liljenquist) of the due dates for their response briefs. [see appendix-clerk letter] On May 26, 2020 Mr. Critchlow filed and served on all respondents his Opening Brief.

Respondents Dianna Evans and Levi Liljenquest never filed response briefs. Under the RAP's "a respondent is obligated to file a brief and monetary sanctions may be imposed for failure to do so." *State v. Wilburn*, 51 Wn. App. 827 (Div. 11, 1988) citing RAP 18.9. Further, neither Evans nor Liljenquist signed off as formally "joining" in the Response Brief filed by Dawn Vidoni. Finally, respondents Evans and Liljenquist failed to file formal motions with the court of appeals asking that they be "exempted" from having to file response briefs for this case. See e.g. *In Re*

Settlement/Guardianship o A.G.M. 154 Wn. App. 58 (Div. II, 2010)[respondent's motion for exemption granted] This 'prima facie error' rule was first brought to the courts' attention in Mr. Critchlow's motion for oral argument. Respondent Evans filed her "response to motion" wherein she brazenly stated "unless directed by the court I do not plan to file a formal responsive briefing or appear for any oral arguments in this matter." [see appendix-Evans response dated Dec. 22,2020] Mr. Critchlow's motion for oral argument was denied.

This rule <u>limits review</u> to whether appellant has established a prima facie case of error. Later cases firmly established and elaborated upon this holding *State v. Wilburn*, 51 Wn. App. 827 (Div. 11, 1988) citing *Stigall v. Courtesey-Chevrolet-Pontiac Inc*, 15 Wn .App. 739 (1976); *Marriage of Forsyth*, 14 Wn. App. 909 (1976); *Foley v. Smith*,14 Wn. App. 285 (1975) and *Martin v. Schoonover* 13 Wn. App. 48 (1975)[respondent choosing not to file a brief does so at his peril]

13. Evans and Liljenquist failure to file response briefs violated Critchlow' due process rights under the 5th and 14th amendments and prevented him from filing a Motion on the Merits to Reverse per RAP 18.14. These matters involve significant questions under our federal constitution and should be reviewed per RAP 13.4(3)

RAP 18.14(b) allows a party to submit a "motion on the merits to reverse" any time <u>after respondent</u> briefs have been

submitted. A motion on the merits is not properly before the court until this is done. See *In Re Marriage of Hennemann*, 69 Wn. App. 345 (Div. I, 1993) fn 1. The failure of Evans and Liljenquist to file any response briefs prevented Mr. Critchlow from filing his motion on the merits to reverse, denying him his due process rights accorded to him under the RAP's and our federal constitution.

14.Div.III overlooked the fact that respondent Levi Liljenquist never gave Mr. Critchlow any notice (oral or written) of his intent to seek CR 11 sanctions which is a violation of Critchlow's due process rights under the 5th and 14th amendments that needs to be reviewed per RAP 13.4 (b)(3).

Div. III states that sanctions were proper since Vidoni and Evans gave Mr. Critchlow proper notice of their intent to seek CR 11 sanctions because they mentioned sanctions in their briefs (Op. 19) even though they had <u>not</u> filed formal CR 11 motions.

However, respondent Levi Liljenquist <u>never</u> gave Mr. Critchlow <u>any notice</u> of his intent to seek sanctions, either orally or in writing. This cannot satisfy due process for Mr. Critchlow.

VI. CONCLUSION

For all the above-mentioned reasons this court should accept review, reverse the sanctions judgment against petitioner and award reasonable attorney fees and costs to petitioner.

SUBMITTED THIS 10th day May, 2021

R Ciddle

ROBERT W. CRITCHLOW WSBA# 17540 Attorney Pro Se 208 E. Rockwell Ave Spokane, WA.99207 (509) 483-4106***office Email=Critchie747@comcast.net