FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
6/3/2021 10:49 AM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

Supreme Court No. 99752-7 Court of Appeals No. 36774-6-III

# SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

In the Matter of the Sanction Order Against Attorney Robert W. Critchlow

# DEPARTMENT'S ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

ROBERT W. FERGUSON Attorney General

DAWN T. VIDONI Assistant Attorney General WSBA #36753 OID# OC638509 1116 W. Riverside, Ste. 100 Spokane, WA 99201-1106 (509) 456-3121

#

### I. INTRODUCTION

The Department of Social and Health Services (DSHS) sought protection of a vulnerable adult, Mary Green, by petitioning for a Vulnerable Adult Protection Order and Guardianship. Ms. Green is 100 years old, blind and suffers from dementia. She has a narrowed esophagus that places her at risk of choking. In order to prevent choking, it was necessary for Ms. Green's food to be chopped into small pieces and for her to avoid foods such as nuts and grapes. Her doctors also recommended that she eat sitting up and be monitored for 30 minutes after eating. Jerome Green, Ms. Green's son, frequently put Ms. Green at risk by providing foods to her that were choking hazards and not complying with medical directives put in place to keep his mother safe.

Ultimately, at the request of the guardian ad litem, the trial court imposed monetary sanctions on Jerome Green's attorney, Robert Critchlow, for persistently advancing baseless arguments. The Court of Appeals affirmed the sanction, but reversed the award of fees to the Department because the Department had not sought sanctions. The Department agrees that partial reversal of the fee award was correct.

This response is filed to identify the relevant law and to ensure that additional money is not depleted from the estate of Mary Green by involving the guardian ad litem in further unnecessary litigation.

### II. STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Court of Appeals decision accurately summarizes the facts and procedural history.

### III. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED

Although Mr. Critchlow raises a number of constitutional and due process arguments, the Court of Appeals accepted review only on one issue—whether sanctions were properly awarded against him<sup>1</sup>—and the appeal proceeded in the Court of Appeals solely on that issue. Accordingly, that is the only issue properly presented in the petition for review. The Court of Appeals decision thoroughly addressed the arguments raised by Mr. Critchlow and properly refused to consider arguments outside the scope of his appeal. Mr. Critchlow has identified no basis for further review under RAP 13.4(b).

# A. The Court of Appeals Decision Does Not Conflict with Other Decisions or Raise an Issue of Public Interest

The Department sought appointment of a guardian on behalf of Mary Green under RCW 11.88.030. Once the trial court receives a guardianship petition, the court is *required* to appoint a guardian ad litem

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Commissioner's Ruling dated October 25, 2019 (dismissing the matter as not appealable as of right and lacking any ground on which to grant discretionary review); and Panel Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part Motion to Modify Commissioner's Ruling dated February 18, 2020 (permitting appeal only of the April 5, 2019, sanction order and accompanying judgments entered on May 10, 2019, and ordering the case title to be changed to: In re the Sanction Order Against Attorney Robert W. Critchlow).

(GAL) to represent the best interests of the alleged incapacitated person. RCW 11.88.090(3). Because Ms. Green was not represented at the time the guardianship petition was filed, a GAL was selected from the guardian ad litem registry maintained by Spokane County under LSPR 98.22. Neither Mr. Critchlow nor his client were entitled to prior notice of the appointment. The challenges he raised to the specific appointment of the GAL were not made until it was too late for him to do so. RCW 11.88.090(3).

Mr. Critchlow's contention that *Graham v. Graham*, 40 Wn.2d 64, 240 P.2d 564 (1952), requires a hearing prior to appointment of a guardian ad litem is not correct, and the Court of Appeals decision does not contradict the *Graham* decision. In *Graham*, an alleged incapacitated person involved in ongoing litigation was represented by an attorney and objected to appointment of a GAL. *Graham*, 40 Wn.2d at 65. This Court determined that even though it was well-established principle that a guardian ad litem should be appointed for a litigant reasonably thought to be incompetent and unable to intelligently understand legal proceedings involving them, whether or not appointment was proper was a serious question when objected to by the alleged incapacitated person or their attorney. *Id.* At 67. The facts are different here than in *Graham*. Ms. Green was not represented nor did she object to appointment of the GAL. The

Court of Appeals also properly distinguished *In re Marriage of Blakely*, 111 Wn. App. 351, 44 P.3d 924 (2002), which applied a different statute, RCW 4.08.060, than the one governing this case. RCW 4.08.060 addresses the appointment of a GAL for a *party to litigation* the court determines is incapacitated and either has no guardian or a guardian the court determines is an improper person to appear in the litigation on the party's behalf. Mary Green is not a party to litigation, and this case involves the general guardianship statute, RCW 11.88. The Court of Appeals held that the trial court followed the procedures set out in that statute, specifically including the ex parte appointment of a GAL to investigate the circumstances and recommend whether a guardian or limited guardian is needed. *See* RCW 11.88.090. There is no conflict with any decision of this Court or the Court of Appeals.

Neither is the issue presented—whether the trial court acted within its discretion in awarding a monetary sanction against this attorney for persistently advancing baseless arguments—one of public importance warranting this Court's attention. There is no basis for review under RAP 13.4(b).

//

//

//

# B. The Challenge to Pro Tem Commissioner Grovdahl's Authority to Sign Civil Orders Was Raised for the First Time On Appeal and Need Not Be Considered Further

The local rule prohibiting pro tem court commissioners from signing guardianship orders, LSPR 98.22(a), was not raised by Mr. Critchlow at the trial court level and cannot be raised for the first time on appeal. RAP 2.5(a); *State v. Gentry*, 125 Wn.2d 570, 616, 888 P.2d 1105 (1995) (alleged violation of court rule could not be raised for first time on appeal). The issue is not properly before this Court.

# C. Mr. Critchlow's Arguments that the Court of Appeals "Changed the Factual Record" Are Unsupported

Mr. Critchlow repeatedly suggests the Court of Appeals changed the factual record, but provides no credible support for this proposition. Pet. at 7, 9, 14, 15, 17. Because he cannot demonstrate that the Court of Appeals changed the factual record, there is no conflict with Sunderland Fam. Treatment Servs. v. City of Pasco, 127 Wn.2d 782, 790, 903 P.2d 986 (1995).

#### IV. CONCLUSION

The Court of Appeals fully reviewed the issue properly presented in this appeal, and explained why it would not allow Mr. Critchlow to bring in other issues. Mr. Critchlow has demonstrated no basis under RAP 13.4(b) for further review by this Court. His petition should be denied.